
 
Mission: Provide quality person-centred health care services to our community 

WRH VALUES 

We respectfully acknowledge that the Windsor Regional Hospital occupies the traditional, ancestral 

and contemporary lands of the Niswi Ishkodewan Anishinaabeg: The Three Fires Confederacy 

(Ojibwe, Odawa, and Potawatomi). We acknowledge the land and the surrounding waters for 

sustaining us and we are committed to protecting and restoring these lands and waters from 

environmental degradation. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, November 3 2022 
VIA ZOOM: 1700 hours 

Windsor, Ontario 

 (ZOOM link is included with the meeting invitation) 

 TAB TIME ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER (Paniccia) 

 

 1700  

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

(Paniccia) 

 

 1702  

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES:  

October 6, 2022 (Paniccia) 

 

 

Tab A 

 

 

1703 

 

MOTION 

(approve) 

4. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEO (Musyj) 

 

 1705 FYI 

5. CNE REPORT (Riddell)  

 

 1720 FYI 

6. SCHULICH REPORT – (Jacobs)  

 

 1745 FYI 

7. FINANCIAL PRESENTATION – (McLeod) 

 

Tab B 1750  

8. CONSENT AGENDA:   

Finance/Audit & Resources:  October 24, 2022 & 

Operating Results (McLeod) 

 

 

Tab C 

 

 

1800 

MOTION 

(accept report) 

9. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER: 

 Media Report – FYI only (Paniccia) 

 

Tab D 

 

 

1810 

 

FYI 

10. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR 

NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Paniccia) 

 

  

1810 

 

11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING: 

Thursday, December 8, 2022 – ZOOM 

 

 1815 FYI 



12. ADJOURNMENT (Paniccia) 

 

 1815 MOTION 

 

REGRETS ONLY TO dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca, or (519) 254-5577 X52517 

 

 

 

 
 

mailto:dawn.sutherland@wrh.on.ca


 

 
T

A
B

 A
 



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS meeting held on Thursday, October 6, 2022, 17:00 

hours, via ZOOM, live streamed on YouTube. 

 

PRESENT VIA ZOOM:  
Anthony Paniccia, Chair  

Laura Copat   David Malian  Dr. Wassim Saad (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Paul Lachance   Dr. Laurie Freeman David Musyj (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Cynthia Bissonnette  Genevieve Isshak Karen Riddell (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Ian McLeod   Penny Allen  Dr. Danielle Soulliere (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Linda Staudt   Michael Lavoie Dr. Larry Jacobs (ex-officio, non-voting) 

       Dr. Maher Sabalbal (ex-officio, non-voting) 

STAFF VIA ZOOM: 
Executive Committee 

 

GUEST: 

Sarah Mushtaq 

 

REGRETS: 

Mary Dawson 

Patricia France 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting was called to order at 1700 hours with Mr. Paniccia presiding as Chair and Ms. 

Sutherland recording the minutes.   

 

2. EIDAR PRESENTATION   

The Chair welcomed Ms. Mushtaq to the meeting.  Ms. Mushtaq is the Director of Equity, 

Inclusion, Diversity and Anti-Racism (EIDAR).  In her new role at WRH, Ms. Mushtaq has 

begun the process of obtaining staff, patient, family and community feedback to improve 

health equity outcomes in the organization working under the Ontario Health EIDAR 

Framework.  The pandemic highlighted some inequities within the organization and we need 

to ensure our patients are receiving care in a culturally safe way and that our staff feel safe.   

 

Ms. Mushtaq reported on current initiatives, or work in process, and also presented her plans 

for the next three years.  The Hospital participated in Orange Shirt Day last Friday, 

September 30, 2022 and there are upcoming education sessions scheduled for October.  This 

is all set out in her presentation which was circulated in advance. 

 

Questions/Comments: 

The session and video from this past Tuesday with respect to ESC Indigenous Communities 

was very informative.   



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 2 
 

 

As a board, what can we do to help lead the charge?   

Ms. Mushtaq explained that engagement and support is very important as well as board 

participation in the education series. 

 

Ms. Mushtaq was thanked for her presentation. 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

None declared. 

 

4. PREVIOUS MINUTES: 

The minutes of the September 8, 2022 Board meeting had been previously circulated. 

 

MOVED by Mr. P. Lachance , SECONDED by Dr. L. Freeman and CARRIED 

THAT the minutes of the September 8, 2022 Board of Directors meeting be approved. 

 

The Chair provided a couple of updates: 

 Thank you to Ms. P. France and the St. Clair College Alumni Association for a 

wonderful event – the 28th annual St. Clair College Food and Wine Gala held on 

September 23, 2022.  The event raised $1.1-million in support of the W/E Acute 

Care Hospital.   

 In support of Breast Awareness Cancer Month, the Protect your Pumpkins t-shirt 

campaign is running.  All proceeds raised will support cancer awareness research 

and treatment for women in our region through the Windsor Cancer Centre 

Foundation.   

 The 5th annual Halloween Family Spooktacular hosted by T2B Youth Ambassadors 

is taking place on October 29th at Malden Park.  All proceeds will support the 

Ronald McDonald House and the T2B paediatric programs. 

 Thank you on behalf of the Board to Ms. Carol Parent for her fundraising efforts 

during this year’s Sail into Summer, raising over $50,000 for the hospital and a new 

endoscopic ultrasound machine. 

 

5. REPORT FROM THE PRESIDENT & CEO: 

In addition to Mr. Musyj’s written report, he provided the following highlights: 

 

 We are busy preparing for the fall and winter months ahead of us. 

 The Minister of Health, Minister Jones held a breakfast session in Windsor on 

September 27, 2022 to pledge the provincial government’s support for the W/E new 

hospital project.  During the event, it was announced that WRH has selected Stantec 

Architecture as the Planning, Design and Conformance (PDC) consultant for the New 

Windsor-Essex Acute Care Hospital Project. This team of architects and engineers will 

support the project through the development of design documents while providing 

support throughout the tendering and construction stages.   

 



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 3 
 

 Mr. Musyj has been asked about possible risks to the new W/E hospital project. He 

has also been asked about legal costs with respect to CAMPP and the court 

decision.  Premier Ford’s message is the Province is not going to delay this project 

however W/E can delay it, for example, the upcoming municipal elections present a 

risk. In addition, there are candidates running for council and Mayor in both the 

County and City that have shown their support for CAMPP publically/verbally and/or 

in donations to their various appeals to the zoning process. Mr. Musyj read from 

Justice Corbett’s decision.  You can visit the CAMPP website for a current list of their 

donors.  Currently, CAMPP still owes the Hospital $6,942.00 plus interest.   Legal 

costs associated with these challenges are in the hundreds of thousands of dollars.  The 

City of Windsor also incurred costs due to these proceedings and is still owed $23568 

plus interest.  

 

6. CNE REPORT 

Ms. Riddell’s report focused on influenza projections and prevention.  The following are 

highlights from her report: 

  

 As mentioned in September, based on the Australia experience we are expecting 

earlier season onset, higher number of cases than the last 5 years and increased demand 

for hospital beds. 

 Annually influenza results in 12,200 influenza related hospitalizations and 3500 

deaths.  

 Influenza can also be asymptomatic but still be transmitted to others.  The contagious 

period can be up to 5 days.   

 In addition to public health measures such as physical distancing, hand washing, 

masking, the influenza vaccine is the best defense against getting and spreading the 

influenza virus. 

 With the potential for continued COVID-19 circulation this fall it is essential to 

prevent morbidity and mortality related to influenza. Ontario has a Universal Influenza 

Immunization Program offering free influenza vaccine each year for those 6 months 

and older.  Influenza vaccines will soon be available in Windsor Essex at your primary 

care provider, public health unit, pharmacies and various other settings.  Check 

wechu.org for updates on arrival and locations for vaccination  

 As of Monday, September 26, individuals aged 18 and over, as well as 

immunocompromised individuals aged 12 to 17, can now receive a bivalent booster 

dose at a recommended interval of six months (or a minimum interval of three months) 

since the last dose, regardless of the number of doses already received.  The bivalent 

vaccines contain two messenger RNA (mRNA) components instead of one. One of the 

components is from the original strain of the coronavirus, while the other component 

is from the Omicron strain. 

 

Dr. Saad confirmed there are also non-mRNA vaccines available.  These are not so widely 

available and you will need to contact WECHU for more information. 

 

7. REPORT FROM SCHULICH: 

 Dr. Jacobs referred to his report which included several announcements.   



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 4 
 

 

 Year 1 and 2 student integration into the hospital setting is going very well.  Thank you to the 

 hospital for their assistance with PPE etc. 

 

 An accredited CPD event on Prevention of Burnout will be provided by Drs. Ziter and 

 Vandereeden on October 20, 2022.   

   

   

8. FINANCIAL PRESENTATION (August 2022 Results): 
Mr. McLeod reported. 

 

 Slide 2 – Financial Results – YTD August 2022: 

 $726,000 deficit for hospital operations year to date which is $1,666 better than 

 budget. 

 The net deficit after building amortization is $1,241,000 which is $1,963 better than 

 budget.  

 Slide 3 – COVID-19 Impact on Expenses: 

 This slide shows the breakdown of $10.4 million in COVID-19 expenses 

 Unfunded COVID-19 expenses total $1,303,000 due to 

 the wage differential for the Nursing Externs 

 Expenses no longer funded via incremental expense reimbursement 

(after June 2022) 

o sick and isolation costs and additional staffing in the 

perioperative program 

o Incremental PPE  

o Additional shuttle costs, storage of equipment August 

 We expect the $217,000 gap in medical remuneration to be funded 

Revenue shortfalls in the three categories below are not funded: 

 Volume-based for Quality-Based Procedures (QBP), Neuro, Cardiac and Wait Time.  

 When compared to the budgeted volumes there is a $4.7 million shortfall.  Coded 

 data is available to May so we are estimating volumes for June to August.  

 $1.1 million revenue loss in Patient Services revenue. 

 $351, 000 revenue loss in Recoveries. 

 Slide 4 – Revenue: 

 Base and one time funding is $3.5 million favourable due to amounts that have been 

 accrued for known COVID-19 reimbursements.   

 Preferred Accommodation and Co-payment Revenue $1,287,000 unfavourable due 

 to the inability to bill for private and semi-private rooms assigned for infection 

 control reasons.   

 Patient Services Revenue $2,012,000 favourable – relates to uninsured patient 

 revenue from the Ministry which is paid at the interprovincial rate which is higher 

 than the OHIP rate. 



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 5 
 

 Other Recoveries favourable $993,000 – retail pharmacy revenues are offset by 

 higher drug expenses 

 Slide 5 – Expenses: 

 Salaries and Wages are $82,000 unfavourable year to date.  It should be noted that 

 included in the actuals are $1.6 million in COVID sick and isolation pay and $2.4 

 million for nursing externs and $1 million in screening costs.  We would be 

 favourable to budget if these were excluded. 

 Medical/Surgical supplies are $349,000 unfavourable due to increased use of PPE 

 which is not funded beyond June 30, 2022 

 Medical staff fee variance is largely attributable to temporary COVID-19 physician 

 payments which are funded ($2.1 million) with the remainder attributable to 

 additional diagnostic volumes which are funded via OHIP billings (patient services 

 revenue). 

 Drugs $110,000 unfavourable, additional drug expenses in retail pharmacies are 

 offset by recoveries as noted previously 

 Other supplies variance of $762,000 with significant variances in the following 

 categories: 

o legal fees 

o building and grounds maintenance and service contracts 

o patient transportation cost – in May, June and July the hospital was covering 

 the cost of patient transports to Hotel Dieu, nursing and retirement homes in 

 order to free up beds.  

o physician recruitment 

 

MOVED by Mr. I. McLeod, SECONDED by Mr. D. Malian and CARRIED 

THAT the October 6, 2022 Financial Presentation (as of August 31, 2022) be accepted. 

 

 

9. CONSENT AGENDA: 

MOVED by Mr. I. McLeod, SECONDED by Ms. L. Copat and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the September 19, 2022 Finance/Audit & Resources Committee 

meetings be accepted. 

 

  

10. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:  
a) Media Report – FYI only. 

 

 

11. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR NOTICES OF MOTIONS: 
None 

 

 

12. NEW BUSINESS: 

None 

 



Board of Directors – October 6, 2022 Page 6 
 

 

13. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 

Thursday, November 3, 2022, 1700 hrs VIA: ZOOM 

 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to discuss, it was 

 MOVED by Ms. G. Isshak, SECONDED by Mr. P. Lachance and CARRIED 

 THAT the October 6, 2022 Board of Directors meeting be adjourned at 1745 hours. 

 

 

 ___________________________  ____________________________ 

 Anthony Paniccia, Chair   Dawn Sutherland 

 Board of Directors    Recording Secretary/ds 



 

 
T

A
B

 B
 



Board of Directors Meeting
November 3, 2022

Financial Presentation (September 2022 Results)



Financial Results

September 30, 2022

 Funding Update

 Similar to 2021-22, the 2022-23 Surgical Recovery Premium will be set at 15% of the 

current funded rate for each surgery or procedure and will be applied to the last 

25% of a hospital’s initial volume allocation.

 Based on our forecasted volumes, WRH estimate of potential additional revenue is 

$1.8 million. 

2



Financial Results – Hospital Operations (1,000’s of dollars)

September 30, 2022

Net Surplus/(Deficit) after building amortization ($2,952)

3

Current Year 

Actual Budget

$ Variance

Fav/(Unfav) 

 % Variance

Fav/(Unfav)  

Revenue 309,500$             300,415$             9,085$                  3.0%

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 134,188$             130,343$             (3,845)$                (2.9%)

Employee benefits 35,542                  35,646                  104                       0.3%

Employee ben. - future ben. costs 759                       759                       -                             0.0%

Medical staff remuneration 31,331                  26,922                  (4,409)                   (16.4%)

Medical & Surgical supplies 19,920                  19,185                  (735)                      (3.8%)

Drugs 39,436                  38,954                  (482)                      (1.2%)

Supplies & other expenses 38,771                  37,086                  (1,685)                   (4.5%)

Long term Interest 3,493                    3,434                    (59)                        (1.7%)

Equipment lease / rental 1,249                    1,280                    31                         2.4%

Equipment amortization 7,165                    8,950                    1,785                    19.9%

Total Expense 311,854$             302,559$             (9,295)$                (3.1%)

Surplus / (Deficit) From Hospital Operations (2,354)$                (2,144)$                (210)$                    

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded - eligible
262$                     262$                     

COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

unfunded  - ineligible
2,986$                  2,986$                  

COVID-19 related unfunded non-ministry 

revenue loss included above
1,756$                  1,756$                  

YTD - Unearned Ministry volume funding 5,649$                  (5,649)$                

Surplus or (Deficit) / Revenue -0.76% -0.71% -0.05%



Financial Results – COVID-19 Impact

September 30, 2022
Year to Date Results include $13 million in COVID-19 extraordinary expenses.  Net 

revenue losses total $7.4 million.

4

Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded

Unfunded 

Eligible

Unfunded 

Ineligible

Compensation 5,517,248           -                 2,220,907    

Medical Staff Fees 2,526,540           261,913         -               

Med. Surg. Supplies 732,814              -                 665,874       

Drugs 9,930                  -                 -               

Other supplies & expense 835,434              -                 65,717         

Equipment Expenses 202,773              -                 33,318         

Renovations -                      -                 -               

Total Operating Expense 9,824,738$        261,913$      2,985,817$ 

Capital 86,180$             -                -$            

Combined Total 9,910,918$        261,913$      2,985,817$ 

COVID-19 Expenses Year-to-Date September 2022

Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded Unfunded

Volume Based* -                            5,648,659                 

Patient Services** -                            1,354,240                 

Recoveries*** -                            402,125                    

Total Revenue -                           7,405,024$               

COVID-19 Revenue Loss Year-to-Date September 2022



Financial Results

September 30, 2022

Significant Variances ($1,000’s of dollars)

 Salaries & Wages ($3,845)

 Includes $3,254 for the 2nd TRIN payment = fully funded

 Extern, S-PEP and COVID-19 incremental funding $5,517

 Medical Staff Fees ($4,409)

 $2,788 COVID-19 funded

 $2,866 favourable in Patient Services Revenue

 Medical/Surgical Supplies ($735)

 91% ($666) incremental PPE

 Drugs ($482)

 Other Recoveries favourable $1,552 mainly in retail pharmacies
5



Financial Results

September 30, 2022

Significant Variances ($1,000’s of dollars)

 Other Supplies ($1,685)

 ($963) legal fees

 ($718) building/grounds maintenance & service contracts

 ($247) referred out patient transport

 ($226) physician recruitment

 Deficits above are offset by favourable variances

 $402 equipment & software maintenance

 $215 printing supplies

 $130 staff travel

6



 

 
 

T
A

B
 C

 
 

 
 

 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – October 24, 2022 

 

MOTION/ACTION SHEET 
 

From The 
 

FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
General Session 

 

Monday, October 24, 2022 
 
 
THERE ARE NO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE. 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – October 24, 2022 

 
 
 

MINUTES from the meeting of the FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE (General 
Session) held on Monday, October 24, 2022 Via Zoom (following the In-Camera Session). 
 
PRESENT:        COMMUNITY MEMBERS:    REGRETS: 
Ian McLeod (Chair & Treasurer)  Anna Kirby         Robert Klein 
Dr. Laurie Freeman      James Skutovich        Trevor Chapman 
Paul Lachance       Marc Jones 
Penny Allen        Dwayne Dawson 
Dr. Danielle Soulliere 
 
Anthony Paniccia, Chair of the Board of Directors 
 
STAFF: 
Malissa Gauthier 
Todd Bested 
John Faber 
Heidi Zimmer 
Mary Macera 
 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mr. McLeod, Chair & Treasurer called the meeting to order at 5:38 p.m. 
 
The proceedings were recorded by Mary Macera. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Marc Jones, SECONDED by Anna Kirby that the General 
Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Agenda of Monday, October 24, 2022, 
be approved. 

 
  CARRIED. 
 
3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No “Conflict of Interest” was declared. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – October 24, 2022 

Page Two 

 
4.0 FOR APPROVAL / RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
4.1 Minutes of Previous Meeting – Monday, September 19, 2022 
 
 The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Minutes of the General Meeting of Monday, 

September 19, 2022 were previously circulated to all members. 
 

MOVED by Paul Lachance, SECONDED by Laurie Freeman- that the General 
Meeting Minutes from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, 
September 19, 2022 be approved. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
 
5.0 FOR DISCUSSION 
 
5.1  Monthly Operating Results Report – September 2022 (As Appended) 
 

Ms Zimmer reported that the operating results for the 6 months ended September 30, 
2022 resulted in a deficit of $2,952,000; $1,109,000 positive Hospital Margin. 
 
There are two items to note: 
 
1. WRH is operating an additional 18 med/surg beds and 3 mental health beds.  Beds are 

unfunded. 
 
2. Operating results include a combined $14.8 million in higher costs and lost revenues 

attributable to meeting clinical responsibilities related to COVID-19.  Incremental 
expenses will be reimbursed via the criteria applied in fiscal 2022-2023 for the 1st 
quarter of fiscal year 2022-2023 only. 

 
Ms Zimmer added that the vaccine administration and Health Human Resource (HHR) 
Program will continue to receive operating funding until March 31, 2023. 
 
Some work has been done for a submission to the Ministry for some Surgical Recovery 
Premiums for this year.  The Ministry is basically trying to incentivize hospitals to reach 
pre-pandemic levels of our surgical and procedural outputs.  Similar to the previous year, 
the premium is set at 15% of the current funded rate for surgeries and it would be applied 
to the last 25% of our initial volume allocation.  Will apply to our global funding for wait-
times and QBPs.  The globally funded pieces is a bit new this year and based on the 
forecast that the hospital has submitted, our potential revenue is $1.8 million currently not 
in the budget. 
 
With respect to the statements, a few points were highlighted: 
- In hospital operations, there is quite a bit of favourability in revenues and 

unfavourability offsetting in expenses. 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – October 24, 2022 

Page Three 

 
- COVID-19 extraordinary expenses were outlined; those unfunded due to wage 

differentials in nursing externs, etc. 
- Expenses no longer covered after June 2022 with be sick and isolation costs, additional 

staffing, PPEs, just to name a few. 
- Revenue shortfalls are seen in QBPs, Neuro, Cardio and Wait Times. 
- Patient services revenue loss of $1.4 million. 
- Other recoveries loss of $402,000 
- Significant variances seen in Salaries and Wages, medical staff fees, med/surg supplies, 

and other supplies. 
 
 
6.0 FOR INFORMATION 
 
6.1  The Project Management Office (PMO) Report 

 
A link was provided to the committee members. 
 

6.2  President’s Report – October 2022 
 
  A link was provided for the community members. 
 
6.3  MoH – Ministry Realignment – October 20, 2022 
 
  This correspondence was provided to the committee members for information. 
 
 
7.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee will meet on Monday, November 28, 2022 at 5:00 
p.m. Via Zoom, noting that a “Special” Joint FAR Committee and WRH Board of 
Directors Meeting may take place at 4:00 p.m. that same day. 
 
 
8.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. McLeod indicated that there was no further business and therefore, thanked the committee 
members for their attendance, their questions and comments.  It is very nice to see such an 
engaged committee! 
 

MOVED by Laurie Freeman, SECONDED by Paul Lachance that the General 
Meeting from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, October 
24, 2022 be adjourned at 5:48 p.m. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – October 24, 2022 

Page Four 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________             __________________________________ 
Mr. McLeod, Chair & Treasurer       Mary Macera 
FinAudit&Resources_Minutes        Recorder 
20221024 
 





























 

 
T

A
B

 D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

Media Report to the Board of Directors  

October 2022 

 

 
Windsor's complex mental health care system not getting fixed fast enough, says CMHA 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 3, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mental-health-care-windsor-essex-1.6600417 

 

Corvette Club of Windsor donates to WRH 

AM800, Oct. 2, 2022 

Corvette Club of Windsor Donates to Windsor Regional Hospital  

 

Windsor car lovers donate big to WRH 

Blackburn News, Oct. 2, 2022 

BlackburnNews.com - Windsor car lovers donate big to Windsor Regional Hospital 

 

$40M going towards hiring more health care workers in Middlesex-Lambton and 

Chatham-Kent 

CTV Windsor, Sept. 30, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/40-million-going-towards-hiring-more-health-care-workers-in-

middlesex-lambton-and-chatham-kent-1.6091090 

 

Reader letter: Don't blame elderly for Ontario's hospital woes 

Windsor Star, Oct. 3, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-dont-blame-elderly-for-hospital-woes 

 

New diversity alliance a 'big responsibility' for Hôtel-Dieu Grace Healthcare 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/edii-alliance-hdgh-1.6604068 

 

Plan in case of ER closures at CKHA ‘in place’ 

Windsor Star, Oct. 4, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-

aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-

318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=Iw

AR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-

0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962 

 

High number of opioid related ER visits in Windsor-Essex prompts alert 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/high-number-of-opioid-related-er-visits-in-windsor-essex-prompts-

alert-1.6097614 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mental-health-care-windsor-essex-1.6600417
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/corvette-club-of-windsor-donates-to-windsor-regional-hospital-1.18573600
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/01/windsor-car-lovers-donate-big-windsor-regional-hospital/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/40-million-going-towards-hiring-more-health-care-workers-in-middlesex-lambton-and-chatham-kent-1.6091090
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/40-million-going-towards-hiring-more-health-care-workers-in-middlesex-lambton-and-chatham-kent-1.6091090
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-dont-blame-elderly-for-hospital-woes
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/edii-alliance-hdgh-1.6604068
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/plan-in-case-of-er-closures-at-health-alliance-set-aside/wcm/935d8709-1d82-40fd-b715-318005c4db48?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR0zctXsgNrXvglj6cPC9-ur0riAEFwa37iDTbAkpw3hzH-0HAi1O4WTCz8#Echobox=1664921962
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/high-number-of-opioid-related-er-visits-in-windsor-essex-prompts-alert-1.6097614
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/high-number-of-opioid-related-er-visits-in-windsor-essex-prompts-alert-1.6097614


 

WECOSS issues opioid alert; 14 overdoses in one week 

Blackburn News, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/wecoss-issues-opioid-alert-14-

overdoses-one-week/ 

 

Alert issued after 14 overdoses within 7 days in Windsor-Essex 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-wecoss-opioid-alert-1.6607511 

 

Regional cancer program gets $740K boost from Foundation 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-program-gets-740k-boost-from-foundation-

1.6097523 

 

Upgrades made to cancer centre thanks to major donation 

Blackburn News, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/upgrades-made-cancer-centre-

thanks-major-donation/ 

 

Regional cancer program receives $740K donation 

AM800, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-cancer-program-receives-740-620-

donation-1.18600211 

 

Improving support in Windsor-Essex for those who suffer PTSD a vital process 

Windsor Star, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-police-officer-military-veteran-shares-his-

experiences-dealing-with-ptsd 

 

Maryvale satellite office to be open five days a week in Leamington 

AM800, Oct. 5, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/maryvale-satellite-office-to-be-open-five-days-a-week-

in-leamington-1.18596978 

 

WRH Board hears strategy for health equity 

Windsor Star, Oct. 7, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wrh-board-hears-strategy-for-health-equity 

 

Musyj, Dilkens claim election results could derail hospital planning 

Windsor Star, Oct. 10, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/musyj-dilkens-claim-election-results-could-derail-hospital-

planning 

 

 

 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/wecoss-issues-opioid-alert-14-overdoses-one-week/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/wecoss-issues-opioid-alert-14-overdoses-one-week/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-wecoss-opioid-alert-1.6607511
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-program-gets-740k-boost-from-foundation-1.6097523
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-program-gets-740k-boost-from-foundation-1.6097523
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/upgrades-made-cancer-centre-thanks-major-donation/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/05/upgrades-made-cancer-centre-thanks-major-donation/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-cancer-program-receives-740-620-donation-1.18600211
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-cancer-program-receives-740-620-donation-1.18600211
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-police-officer-military-veteran-shares-his-experiences-dealing-with-ptsd
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-police-officer-military-veteran-shares-his-experiences-dealing-with-ptsd
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/maryvale-satellite-office-to-be-open-five-days-a-week-in-leamington-1.18596978
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/maryvale-satellite-office-to-be-open-five-days-a-week-in-leamington-1.18596978
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wrh-board-hears-strategy-for-health-equity
https://windsorstar.com/news/musyj-dilkens-claim-election-results-could-derail-hospital-planning
https://windsorstar.com/news/musyj-dilkens-claim-election-results-could-derail-hospital-planning


Ward 4 hopeful Rondot proposes commercial housing development for Met hospital site 

Windsor Star, Oct. 8, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ward-4-hopeful-rondot-proposes-commercial-housing-

development-for-met-hospital-site 

 

WRH board hears strategy for health equity 

Windsor Star, Oct. 7, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wrh-board-hears-strategy-for-health-equity 

 

Ontario patient says Canadian doctors deemed her cancer inoperable, so she'll pay $100K 

for U.S. surgery 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-cancer-surgery-pay-out-of-pocket-

1.6604129 

 

New outpatient eye centre opens in Windsor 

Blackburn News, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/windsor-regional-hospital-open-

outpatient-eye-centre/ 

 

Windsor-Essex faces another day of Code Black 

AM800, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-faces-another-day-of-code-black-

1.18634638 

 

Holt pledges reallocation of funds for downtown mental health ER 

Windsor Star, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-pledges-reallocation-of-funds-for-downtown-

mental-health-er 

Windsor mayoral candidate Chris Holt shares plans to address homelessness and mental 

health 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-mayoral-candidate-chris-holt-shares-plans-to-address-

homelessness-and-mental-health-1.6106469 

 

Holt releases plan for mental health and homelessness supports 

AM800, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/holt-releases-plan-for-mental-health-and-homelessness-

supports-1.18631675 

 

Holt proposes mental health emergency pilot project 

Blackburn News, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/holt-proposes-mental-health-

emergency-room-pilot-project/ 

 

 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ward-4-hopeful-rondot-proposes-commercial-housing-development-for-met-hospital-site
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/ward-4-hopeful-rondot-proposes-commercial-housing-development-for-met-hospital-site
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wrh-board-hears-strategy-for-health-equity
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-cancer-surgery-pay-out-of-pocket-1.6604129
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-cancer-surgery-pay-out-of-pocket-1.6604129
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/windsor-regional-hospital-open-outpatient-eye-centre/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/windsor-regional-hospital-open-outpatient-eye-centre/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-faces-another-day-of-code-black-1.18634638
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-faces-another-day-of-code-black-1.18634638
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-pledges-reallocation-of-funds-for-downtown-mental-health-er
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-pledges-reallocation-of-funds-for-downtown-mental-health-er
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-mayoral-candidate-chris-holt-shares-plans-to-address-homelessness-and-mental-health-1.6106469
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-mayoral-candidate-chris-holt-shares-plans-to-address-homelessness-and-mental-health-1.6106469
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/holt-releases-plan-for-mental-health-and-homelessness-supports-1.18631675
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/holt-releases-plan-for-mental-health-and-homelessness-supports-1.18631675
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/holt-proposes-mental-health-emergency-room-pilot-project/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/holt-proposes-mental-health-emergency-room-pilot-project/


Former St. Clair College executive named CEO of WECHU 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/new-ceo-windsor-essex-county-health-unit-1.6613951 

 

Dr. Ken Blanchette named new CEO for WECHU 

AM800, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ken-blanchette-named-new-ceo-for-the-windsor-

essex-county-health-unit-1.18633737 

 

Health unit taps Blanchette as new CEO 

Blackburn News, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/health-unit-taps-blanchette-new-

ceo/ 

 

WECHU announces Dr. Ken Blanchette is new CEO 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-announces-dr-ken-blanchette-is-new-ceo-1.6105886 

 

Former Grace Hospital site to become $100M Global Village 

Windsor Star, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-grace-hospital-site-to-become-100m-global-

village 

 

Fairmount Properties reveals plans to transform former Grace Hospital site into $100M 

Global Village 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/fairmount-properties-reveals-plans-to-transform-former-grace-

hospital-site-into-100m-global-village-1.6105950 

 

Concerts for a Cure to benefit Windsor Cancer Centre Foundation 

AM800, Oct. 12, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/concerts-for-a-cure-to-benefit-windsor-cancer-centre-

foundation-1.18631851 

 

HDGH president distances hospital from Holt mayoral campaign promise 

Windsor Star, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hdgh-president-distances-hospital-from-holt-mayoral-

campaign-promise 

 

Hospitals say they're not involved in Holt's campaign pledge for a downtown mental health 

ER 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 14, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/hospitals-say-they-re-not-involved-in-holt-s-campaign-

pledge-for-a-downtown-mental-health-er-1.6615960 

 

 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/new-ceo-windsor-essex-county-health-unit-1.6613951
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ken-blanchette-named-new-ceo-for-the-windsor-essex-county-health-unit-1.18633737
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ken-blanchette-named-new-ceo-for-the-windsor-essex-county-health-unit-1.18633737
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/health-unit-taps-blanchette-new-ceo/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/12/health-unit-taps-blanchette-new-ceo/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-announces-dr-ken-blanchette-is-new-ceo-1.6105886
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-grace-hospital-site-to-become-100m-global-village
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/former-grace-hospital-site-to-become-100m-global-village
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/fairmount-properties-reveals-plans-to-transform-former-grace-hospital-site-into-100m-global-village-1.6105950
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/fairmount-properties-reveals-plans-to-transform-former-grace-hospital-site-into-100m-global-village-1.6105950
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/concerts-for-a-cure-to-benefit-windsor-cancer-centre-foundation-1.18631851
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/concerts-for-a-cure-to-benefit-windsor-cancer-centre-foundation-1.18631851
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hdgh-president-distances-hospital-from-holt-mayoral-campaign-promise
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hdgh-president-distances-hospital-from-holt-mayoral-campaign-promise
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/hospitals-say-they-re-not-involved-in-holt-s-campaign-pledge-for-a-downtown-mental-health-er-1.6615960
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/hospitals-say-they-re-not-involved-in-holt-s-campaign-pledge-for-a-downtown-mental-health-er-1.6615960


Hospital denounces baseless claim made by Windsor mayoral candidate 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hospital-denounces-baseless-claim-made-by-windsor-mayoral-

candidate-1.6108070 

 

Eye surgeries double in Windsor 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2541591 

 

New eye surgical centre unveiled in Windsor's east end 

Windsor Star, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/new-eye-surgical-centre-unveiled-on-east-end 

 

WRH closes PUMA clinic 

AM800, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-closes-puma-clinic-

1.18635666 

 

Pediatric Urgent Medical Assessment Clinic closing 

Blackburn News, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/pediatric-urgent-medical-

assessment-clinic-closing/ 

 

Paramedic system strained even when code black not in effect warns Essex-Windsor EMS 

union 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 13, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/paramedic-system-strained-even-when-code-black-not-in-effect-

warns-essex-windsor-ems-union-1.6107777 

 

 

Parents of sick baby speak out against Windsor, Ont., hospital's policy limiting NICU 

visitors 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 17, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-visitation-policy-1.6615191 

 

Holt responds to hospital criticism, blames Dilkens 

Blackburn News, Oct. 14, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/14/holt-resonds-hospital-criticism-

blames-dilkens/ 

 

PUMA clinic closing after serving over 10,000 young patients 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 14, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/puma-clinic-closing-after-serving-over-10-000-young-patients-

1.6109121 

 

 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hospital-denounces-baseless-claim-made-by-windsor-mayoral-candidate-1.6108070
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hospital-denounces-baseless-claim-made-by-windsor-mayoral-candidate-1.6108070
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?clipId=2541591
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/new-eye-surgical-centre-unveiled-on-east-end
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-closes-puma-clinic-1.18635666
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-closes-puma-clinic-1.18635666
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/pediatric-urgent-medical-assessment-clinic-closing/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/13/pediatric-urgent-medical-assessment-clinic-closing/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/paramedic-system-strained-even-when-code-black-not-in-effect-warns-essex-windsor-ems-union-1.6107777
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/paramedic-system-strained-even-when-code-black-not-in-effect-warns-essex-windsor-ems-union-1.6107777
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-regional-hospital-visitation-policy-1.6615191
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/14/holt-resonds-hospital-criticism-blames-dilkens/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/14/holt-resonds-hospital-criticism-blames-dilkens/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/puma-clinic-closing-after-serving-over-10-000-young-patients-1.6109121
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/puma-clinic-closing-after-serving-over-10-000-young-patients-1.6109121


Caesars Concerts for a Cure support cancer centre 

Blackburn News, Oct. 15, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/15/caesars-concerts-cure-support-

cancer-centre/ 

 

Local Emergency Declared Due to Offload Delays Faced by Essex-Windsor EMS 

AM800 News, October 17, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-emergency-declared-due-to-offload-delays-faced-

by-essex-windsor-ems-1.18652094 

 

Warden Declares Emergency with EMS Services 

AM800 News, October 17, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-declares-emergency-with-ems-services-

1.18650862 

 

County of Essex Declares Local Emergency Over Ambulance Offload Delays 

CTV Windsor, October 17, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-over-ambulance-offload-

delays-1.6112177 

 

Emergency declared as off-load delays persist 

Blackburn News, October 17, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/17/emergency-declared-off-load-

delays-persist/ 

 

County of Essex declares local emergency due to ambulance delays 

Windsor Star, October 17, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-due-to-

ambulance-delays 

 

Hundreds of Code Blacks prompt emergency declaration over ambulances in Windsor-

Essex 

CBC Windsor, October 17, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-ambulances-availability-1.6618971 

 

Warden Concerned About Impact of Flu Season, COVID on EMS 

AM800 News, October 18, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-concerned-about-impact-of-flu-season-covid-

on-ems-1.18653300 

 

Erie Shores Healthcare Treating More COVID-19 Patients 

AM800 News, October 17, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-treating-more-covid-19-patients-

1.18652295 

 

 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/15/caesars-concerts-cure-support-cancer-centre/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/15/caesars-concerts-cure-support-cancer-centre/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-emergency-declared-due-to-offload-delays-faced-by-essex-windsor-ems-1.18652094
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-emergency-declared-due-to-offload-delays-faced-by-essex-windsor-ems-1.18652094
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-declares-emergency-with-ems-services-1.18650862
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-declares-emergency-with-ems-services-1.18650862
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-over-ambulance-offload-delays-1.6112177
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-over-ambulance-offload-delays-1.6112177
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/17/emergency-declared-off-load-delays-persist/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/17/emergency-declared-off-load-delays-persist/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-due-to-ambulance-delays
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/county-of-essex-declares-local-emergency-due-to-ambulance-delays
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-ambulances-availability-1.6618971
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-concerned-about-impact-of-flu-season-covid-on-ems-1.18653300
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/warden-concerned-about-impact-of-flu-season-covid-on-ems-1.18653300
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-treating-more-covid-19-patients-1.18652295
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/erie-shores-healthcare-treating-more-covid-19-patients-1.18652295


Leamington, Ont., emergency beds filling up with COVID-19 patients 

CBC Windsor, October 18, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-leamington-hospital-covid-19-1.6620013 

 

Ministry of Health to meet with local officials 

Blackburn News, Oct. 18, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/18/ministry-health-meet-local-

officials/ 

 

Windsor West MPP calls for 'urgent' repeal of Bill 124 in wake of Essex County state of 

emergency 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 18, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-state-of-emergency-repeal-bill-124-

1.6621379 

 

Windsor West MPP speaks out following recent EMS and hospital pressures 

AM800, Oct. 19, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-west-mpp-speaks-out-following-recent-ems-

and-hospital-pressures-1.18657827 

 

Do Good Divas reveal finished ICU family conference room at WRH Ouellette Campus 

AM800, Oct. 18, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/do-good-divas-reveal-finished-icu-family-conference-

room-at-wrh-ouellette-campus-1.18653149 

 

Province must provide funding to alleviate Windsor-Essex ambulance crisis, says 

paramedics union 

Windsor Star, Oct. 18, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/province-must-provide-funding-to-alleviate-windsor-

essex-ambulance-crisis-says-paramedics-union 

 

Ward 4 candidate in Windsor questions proposed megahospital location 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ward-4-candidate-in-windsor-questions-proposed-mega-

hospital-location-1.18661362 

 

Paramedics union demands more hospital funding to address emergency 

Blackburn News, Oct. 19, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/19/paramedics-union-demands-

hospital-funding-address-emergency/ 

 

Ongoing code blacks a topic of discussion for Essex County council 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ongoing-code-blacks-a-topic-of-discussion-for-essex-

county-council-1.18661363 

 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-leamington-hospital-covid-19-1.6620013
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/18/ministry-health-meet-local-officials/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/18/ministry-health-meet-local-officials/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-state-of-emergency-repeal-bill-124-1.6621379
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-state-of-emergency-repeal-bill-124-1.6621379
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-west-mpp-speaks-out-following-recent-ems-and-hospital-pressures-1.18657827
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-west-mpp-speaks-out-following-recent-ems-and-hospital-pressures-1.18657827
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/do-good-divas-reveal-finished-icu-family-conference-room-at-wrh-ouellette-campus-1.18653149
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/do-good-divas-reveal-finished-icu-family-conference-room-at-wrh-ouellette-campus-1.18653149
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/province-must-provide-funding-to-alleviate-windsor-essex-ambulance-crisis-says-paramedics-union
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/province-must-provide-funding-to-alleviate-windsor-essex-ambulance-crisis-says-paramedics-union
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ward-4-candidate-in-windsor-questions-proposed-mega-hospital-location-1.18661362
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ward-4-candidate-in-windsor-questions-proposed-mega-hospital-location-1.18661362
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/19/paramedics-union-demands-hospital-funding-address-emergency/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/19/paramedics-union-demands-hospital-funding-address-emergency/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ongoing-code-blacks-a-topic-of-discussion-for-essex-county-council-1.18661363
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/ongoing-code-blacks-a-topic-of-discussion-for-essex-county-council-1.18661363


WECHU CEO says talks are underway to address a critical ambulance shortage 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 19, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-ems-code-black-1.6622223 

 

Video: EMS chief says progress made on plan to fix ambulance emergency 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 20, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/player/play/2087388227895 

 

Emergency declaration continues for Essex-Windsor EMS 

Blackburn News, Oct. 21, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/21/emergency-declaration-continues-

essex-windsor-ems/ 

 

Meet the new CEO of WECHU 

Blackburn News, Oct. 20, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/20/meet-new-ceo-windsor-essex-

county-health-unit/ 

 

Less than 15 high school students still suspended for incomplete immunization records 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/less-than-15-high-school-students-still-suspended-for-

incomplete-immunization-records-1.18666179 

 

Windsor-Essex 'Code Black' time in October has exceeded eight hours, says EMS chief 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-code-black-time-in-october-has-

exceeded-eight-hours-says-ems-chief 

 

Reader letter: Employee consultation critical in design of new hospital 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-employee-consultation-critical-in-design-of-

new-hospital 

 

New health unit CEO takes the reigns 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/dr-ken-blanchette-takes-the-reigns-as-health-unit-ceo 

 

Health unit seeking a new medical officer of health 

AM800, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-seeking-a-new-medical-officer-of-health-

1.18670798 

 

WECHU releases annual nutritious food basket stats 

AM800, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-release-annual-nutritious-food-basket-stats-

1.18676276 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-ems-code-black-1.6622223
https://www.cbc.ca/player/play/2087388227895
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/21/emergency-declaration-continues-essex-windsor-ems/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/21/emergency-declaration-continues-essex-windsor-ems/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/20/meet-new-ceo-windsor-essex-county-health-unit/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/20/meet-new-ceo-windsor-essex-county-health-unit/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/less-than-15-high-school-students-still-suspended-for-incomplete-immunization-records-1.18666179
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/less-than-15-high-school-students-still-suspended-for-incomplete-immunization-records-1.18666179
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-code-black-time-in-october-has-exceeded-eight-hours-says-ems-chief
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-code-black-time-in-october-has-exceeded-eight-hours-says-ems-chief
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-employee-consultation-critical-in-design-of-new-hospital
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-employee-consultation-critical-in-design-of-new-hospital
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/dr-ken-blanchette-takes-the-reigns-as-health-unit-ceo
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-seeking-a-new-medical-officer-of-health-1.18670798
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-seeking-a-new-medical-officer-of-health-1.18670798
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-release-annual-nutritious-food-basket-stats-1.18676276
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/wechu-release-annual-nutritious-food-basket-stats-1.18676276


Holt concedes victory to Dilkens in Windsor mayor’s race (references new hospital project) 

Windsor Star, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-concedes-victory-to-dilkens-in-windsor-mayors-

race 

 

Windsor, here's who's on your new city council (references new hospital project) 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windor-essex-election-winners-1.6627753 

 

Mark McKenzie wins tight race in Ward 4 (references new hospital project) 

Windsor Star, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mark-mckenzie-wins-tight-race-in-ward-4 

 

Acting medical officer of health for Chatham-Kent resigns 

AM800, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-medical-officer-of-health-for-chatham-kent-

resigns-1.18678376 

 

Search begins for new medical officer of health in Chatham-Kent 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/search-begins-for-new-medical-officer-of-health-in-chatham-kent-

1.6123006 

 

Chatham-Kent’s new medical officer of health quits to pursue other opportunities 

Windsor Star, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-

other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-

636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwA

R2VLuMOom2NqEQM-

5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995 

 

Nutritious food basket costs Windsor-Essex family $241.66 

Blackburn News, Oct. 24, 2022 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/24/nutritious-food-basket-costs-

windsor-essex-family-241-66/ 

 

 

Q&A: Getting new hospital built early top priority for re-elected mayor Drew Dilkens 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 26, 2022 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/q-a-getting-new-hospital-built-early-top-priority-for-

re-elected-mayor-drew-dilkens-1.6628516 

 

Essex County could soon rescind emergency order over ambulance delays: warden 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 27, 2022 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/ambulance-shortage-windsor-essex-1.6630804 

 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-concedes-victory-to-dilkens-in-windsor-mayors-race
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/holt-concedes-victory-to-dilkens-in-windsor-mayors-race
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windor-essex-election-winners-1.6627753
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mark-mckenzie-wins-tight-race-in-ward-4
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-medical-officer-of-health-for-chatham-kent-resigns-1.18678376
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/acting-medical-officer-of-health-for-chatham-kent-resigns-1.18678376
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/search-begins-for-new-medical-officer-of-health-in-chatham-kent-1.6123006
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/search-begins-for-new-medical-officer-of-health-in-chatham-kent-1.6123006
https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2VLuMOom2NqEQM-5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995
https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2VLuMOom2NqEQM-5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995
https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2VLuMOom2NqEQM-5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995
https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2VLuMOom2NqEQM-5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995
https://windsorstar.com/news/chatham-kents-new-medical-officer-of-health-quits-to-pursue-other-opportunities/wcm/c8824dd1-a571-4fd4-ac0c-636fa1ad4333?utm_term=Autofeed&utm_medium=Social&utm_source=Facebook&fbclid=IwAR2VLuMOom2NqEQM-5bNfFZfXBDd9fms7AbisD_l0v3teMg0hRAP0_3Sty4#Echobox=1666626995
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/24/nutritious-food-basket-costs-windsor-essex-family-241-66/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2022/10/24/nutritious-food-basket-costs-windsor-essex-family-241-66/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/q-a-getting-new-hospital-built-early-top-priority-for-re-elected-mayor-drew-dilkens-1.6628516
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/q-a-getting-new-hospital-built-early-top-priority-for-re-elected-mayor-drew-dilkens-1.6628516
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/ambulance-shortage-windsor-essex-1.6630804


Web and Social Media Analytics – October 2022 

WEB:  

Number of Actual Users Accessing the Website (October 2022) : 34,635 

Number of Website Page Views: 132,444 

  

What Pages Are They Looking At?:  

1. Home Page – 21,874 views 
2. Emergency Wait Times – 11,989 views 
3. Coronavirus – 5573 views 
4. Careers – 4483 views 
5. Pharmacy login (MyWRH) – 2804 views 
6. Contact Us - 2797 
7. COVID-19 Assessment Centre – 2685 views 
8. Coronavirus  – 2642 views 
9. Pharmacy Services  - 2307 views 
10. IV Manual – Formulary Drugs – 2140 views 

 

 

YOUTUBE:  

Views: 5400 views  

Watch Time: 491 hours  

Subscribers: 831, +7 

 

Top videos 

 

Internal: 

1. Demonstrating Compassion (AIDET customer service training) – 571 
2. Guidelines for Basic Adult Neurological Observation - 501 
3. WRH Fit Test demonstration - 223 
4. Improving the Patient Experience – Elevator Privacy - 160 
5. Nursing Student Cerner Millennium video – 82 

External: 

1. Al MacLean, Patient Testimonial – 120 
2. Period of Purple Crying - 116 



3. New Parkland Hospital - 65 
4. Negative Air Pressure Rooms at WRH - 58 
5. WRH Open Board Meeting Oct 6 2022 – 58 

 

 

FACEBOOK: 10,840  followers 

Post Reach – 18,095 

  

Top Posts:  

1. New Surgical Centre opens, 4775 reached 
2. WRH welcomes university, college students, 1777 reached 
3. Patient Testimonial – Lauren Meadows, 1749 
4. St. Clair College Gourmet Food and Wine Gala, 1725 
5. Healthcare Food Service Workers Week, 1704 
6. Materials Management Week, 1619 
7. Patient Testimonial, Al MacLean, 1347 
8. Health Records week, 1103 
9. MDRD Week, 863 
10. Infection Control Week, 823 

 
 

INSTAGRAM – Followers: 3917, +91  

 

Reach: 2888 

Engagement: 426 

 

Top Posts:  

1. St. Clair College Gourmet Food and Wine Gala, 2135 reached 
2. Infection Control Week, 2088 reached 
3. Healthcare Food Services Week, 1626 
4. Materials Management Week, 1586 
5. Orange Shirt Day, 1487 
6. Health Records week, 1384 

 

TWITTER:  

 

Followers: 5,802, +45 this month 

 

October Summary:  

21.5K impressions 



25 tweets 

3041 profile visits 

124 mentions 

 
Top WRH tweet: 

A joint statement has been issued by @HDGHWindsor and @WRHospital in response to 

recent municipal election media coverage. _ Oct. 13, 2022, 4806 impressions 

 

 

https://twitter.com/HDGHWindsor
https://twitter.com/WRHospital

	11032022 Open Agenda
	Tab Template A
	10062022 Open Board minutes
	Tab Template B
	Financial Presentation (September 2022 Results) for Board of Directors - November 3 2022
	Tab Template C
	FinAudResources_MinutesGEN20221024
	5.1 Monthly Operating Results Report - September 30 2022 (revised to reflect change in dates)
	Tab Template D
	Media Report to the Board of Directors Oct 2022



